UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
)
V. )
) No.
ANTOIN REZKO, ) Violation: Title 18, United
also known as “Tony Rezko” ) States Code, Sections 1343,
) 1346, and 2
COUNT ONE

The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY charges:
1. At times material to this indictment:

a. General Electric Capital Corporation (formerly known
as General Electric Capital Business Asset Funding Corporation and
General Electric Franchise Finance Corporation) (““GECC”) was a
corporation with its principal place of business in Bellevue,
Washington. Among other things, GECC loaned money to franchisee-
borrowers for the purpose of acquiring, operating, and building
fast food franchise restaurants.

b. Defendant ANTOIN REZKO (also known as “Tony Rezko™)
(““REZKO”), a resident of Wilmette, Illinois, was the president of
Rezko Enterprises LLC, a businesses that owned and operated
restaurants including Papa John’s Pizza restaurants, directly and
through subsidiaries including PJ Chicago LLC.

C. Rezko Enterprises LLC (“Rezko Enterprises™) was a
limited liability company with offices i1n Downers Grove and

Chicago, Illinois. Rezko Enterprises owned and operated fast-food



restaurants, directly and indirectly through subsidiary companies,
pursuant to franchise agreements, including Papa John’s Pizza
stores in and around Chicago, Illinois; Milwaukee, Wisconsin; and
elsewhere. Rezko Enterprises was owned by shareholders, including
individuals who had paid money to obtain shares 1In Rezko
Enterprises (“Individual Investors™). As president of Rezko
Enterprises, defendant ANTOIN REZKO owed a fiduciary duty and a
duty of honest services to the Individual Investors.

d. PJ Chicago LLC (“PJ Chicago”) was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Rezko Enterprises LLC, and owned and operated Papa
John’s Pizza stores in and around Chicago, Illinois, and Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, and elsewhere.

e. Chicago PJ LLC (*“Chicago PJ”) was owned and operated
by defendant ANTOIN REZKO. Beginning 1i1n approximately 2001,
defendant ANTOIN REZKO, doing business as Chicago PJ LLC, owned and
operated Papa John’s Pizza stores in and around Chicago, Illinois.
Rezko Enterprises and the Individual Investors had no ownership
interests in Chicago PJ LLC.

T. Individual A was an employee of one of the pizza
restaurant businesses that REZKO operated. Individual A controlled
Company A. Rezko Enterprises and the Individual Investors had no
ownership interests in Company A.

g- Individual B was the controller of the pizza

restaurant businesses that REZKO controlled, and in that capacity



Individual B supervised the accounting for these businesses and
oversaw the creation of financial statements relating to the pizza
restaurants controlled by REZKO. Individual B left the REZKO pizza
restaurant businesses in or about February 2002.

h. Individual C, a certified public accountant, operated
an accounting business iIn Cleveland, OH. Among other things,
Individual C was Individual A’s accountant.

i. Individual D was employed in one of REZKO’s pizza
businesses, and in or about February 2002 succeeded Individual B as
controller of the pizza restaurant businesses that Rezko
controlled. In that capacity, Individual D supervised the
accounting for these businesses and oversaw the creation of
financial statements relating to the pizza restaurants controlled
by Rezko.

2. Between in or about 2001 and continuing to at least on or
about August 14, 2003, at Chicago, in the Northern District of
Illinois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZKO
(also known as “Tony Rezko™),

defendant herein, together with Individuals A, B, C, and D, and
with persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury (collectively the
“co-schemers’), knowingly devised, intended to devise, and
participated in a scheme to defraud and to obtain money and
property from GECC by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, promises, and material omissions, and to defraud



the Individual Investors by depriving them of their right to
defendant”’s honest services, which scheme is further described
below.

3. It was part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN REZKO,
for the purpose of fraudulently obtaining loans from GECC and
concealing the nature of those transactions from the Individual
Investors:

a. caused Rezko Enterprises, directly and indirectly
through 1its subsidiary companies, to transfer
assets, namely pizza restaurants located iIn the
vicinity of Milwaukee, Wisconsin and Chicago,
I1linois, to a company owned by Individual A, who
was acting as a nominee for REZKO, and to himself
doing business as Chicago PJ, In transactions in
which the purchase prices were inflated;

b. applied, and caused Individual A to apply, to GECC
for Qloans to finance the purchase of these
restaurants;

C. caused materially false and fraudulent statements
and representations, and material omissions, to be
made to GECC 1in connection with these Iloan
applications and concerning subjects that included
restaurant earnings, buyer equity, and purchase
terms, and misrepresentations about the purchase
prices; and

d. following the transfers of ownership of the
Milwaukee and Chicago area restaurants, misled and
caused others to mislead the Individual Investors
about the ownership and performance of Rezko
Enterprises and its pizza restaurants by, among
other things, fTalsely representing the sales of
restaurants as the refinancing of existing debt and
concealing the transfers of ownership.



Sale of the Milwaukee Area Stores

4. It was further part of the scheme that in or about 2000,
defendant ANTOIN REZKO asked Individual A to assist him in raising
money by entering into a transaction in which Individual A would
act as a straw purchaser of Papa John’s Pizza restaurants located
in the Milwaukee, Wisconsin area from PJ Chicago at an inflated
price so that GECC would lend money based on this inflated purchase
price. Individual A agreed.

5. It was further part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN
REZKO caused Individual A, with the assistance of Individual C, to
apply to GECC for a $5 million loan to finance the purchase by
Company A from PJ Chicago LLC of certain Papa John’s Pizza
restaurants located in the Milwaukee, Wisconsin area.

6. It was further part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN
REZKO caused materially false and fraudulent statements and
material omissions to be made to GECC in connection with this loan
application, including by:

a. causing the creation of documents that falsely made
it appear that the straw purchaser, Individual A
and his company, had made and were going to make a

substantial equity contribution towards the
purchase price;

b. causing Individual B to create false and fraudulent
financial statements relating to the Milwaukee area
stores, which misrepresented the financial

performance and status of the restaurants involved,
including their true operating expenses; and



C. causing those false and fraudulent TfTinancial
statements to be submitted to GECC in connection
with Individual A”s loan application.

7. As a result of defendant ANTOIN REZKO’s fraudulent acts
and the acts of his co-schemers, ownership of certain Milwaukee-
area Papa John’s Pizza restaurants was transferred from PJ Chicago
LLC to Company A, and GECC loaned Company A approximately $4.5
million In March 2001.

8. It was further part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN
REZKO concealed and directed others to conceal from the Individual
Investors the transfer of ownership of the Milwaukee area pizza
stores by, among other things, providing Individual Investors with
fraudulent financial statements that made it falsely appear that
Rezko Enterprises or one of 1ts wholly owned subsidiaries still
owned the Milwaukee area pizza stores, and by characterizing the

$4.5 million GECC loan as a refinancing of existing debt.

Sale of Chicago Area Stores

9. It was further part of the scheme that on or about July
6, 2001, defendant ANTOIN REZKO, doing business as Chicago PJ LLC,
entered Into an agreement with PJ Chicago LLC to purchase certain
Papa John’s Pizza restaurants located in the Chicago area at a
price that was inflated so that GECC would lend money based on the
inflated purchase price.

10. 1t was further part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN

REZKO, with the assistance of Individual C and others, applied to



GECC for a $7.5 million loan to finance the purchase by Chicago PJ
LLC from PJ Chicago LLC of certain Papa John’s Pizza restaurants
located in the Chicago, lllinois area.

11. It was further part of this scheme that defendant ANTOIN
REZKO caused materially fTalse and fraudulent statements and
material omissions to be made to GECC in connection with this loan
application, including by:

a. causing the creation of documents that falsely made
it appear that defendant REZKO and his company,
Chicago PJ LLC, had made and were going to make a
substantial equity contribution towards the
purchase price;

b. causing the terms of the purchase transaction, and
the financial performance and status of the
restaurants involved to be falsely represented to
GECC; and

C. causing Individuals A and B, and other co-schemers,
to create, submit, and cause to be submitted to
GECC, 1in connection with the loan applications,
financial statements for the Chicago area pizza
stores that defendant ANTOIN REZKO well-knew to be
materially false, including by fraudulently
reducing expenses and falsely inflating net income,
also characterized as ‘“Restaurant Contribution.”

12. As a result of defendant ANTOIN REZKO’s fraudulent acts
and the acts of his co-schemers, ownership of certain Chicago-area
Papa John’s Pizza restaurants was transferred from PJ Chicago LLC
to Chicago PJ LLC and GECC made loans to Chicago PJ LLC totaling iIn
excess of $6 million in or about October 2001.

13. After the closing on the fraudulently-obtained GECC loan

to Chicago PJ LLC, that loan became delinquent. It was further



part of the scheme that after this loan became delinquent,
defendant ANTOIN REZKO requested forbearance from GECC on
collection of i1ts loans to Chicago PJ LLC and, in connection with
that request, caused Individual D to create and to submit to GECC
financial statements for Chicago PJ’s Chicago area Papa John’s
Pizza restaurants that defendant ANTOIN REZKO knew to be materially
false, In that, among other things, they fraudulently reduced
expenses and falsely inflated net income, also characterized as
“Restaurant Contribution.”

14. It was further part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN
REZKO concealed and directed others to conceal from the Individual
Investors the transfer of ownership of the Chicago area pizza
stores by, among other things, providing Individual Investors with
fraudulent financial statements that made it falsely appear that
Rezko Enterprises or one of its wholly owned subsidiaries still
owned the Chicago area pizza stores, and by characterizing the $4.5
million GECC loan as a refinancing of existing debt.

15. It was further part of the scheme that defendant ANTOIN
REZKO and his co-schemers misrepresented, concealed and hid and
caused others to misrepresent, conceal, and hide, and to attempt to
misrepresent, conceal, and hide, acts done in furtherance of the
scheme and the purposes of those acts.

16. On or about October 16, 2001, at Chicago, in the Northern

District of Illinois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,



ANTOIN REZKO,
also known as “Tony Rezko”,

defendant herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
scheme and attempting to do so, transmitted and caused to be
transmitted by means of wire communication In interstate commerce
certain writings, signs, signals and sounds, namely a wire transfer
of $5,635,000 from GECC”s bank account at Bankers Trust in New York
City, New York, through the Fedwire System in East Rutherford, New
Jersey, to Rezko Enterprise’s account at La Salle National Bank iIn
Chicago, Illinois;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.



COUNT TWO
The SPECIAL FEBRUARY 2005-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
1. Paragraphs 1 through 15 of Count One of this indictment
are realleged and incorporated here.
2. On or about October 16, 2001, at Chicago, In the Northern
District of Illinois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

ANTOIN REZKO,
also known as “Tony Rezko”,

defendant herein, for the purpose of executing the above-described
scheme and attempting to do so, transmitted and caused to be
transmitted by means of wire communication In interstate commerce
certain writings, signs, signals and sounds, namely a wire transfer
of $500,000 from GECC’s bank account at Bankers Trust in New York
City, New York, through the Fedwire System in East Rutherford, New
Jersey, to Rezko Enterprise’s account at La Salle National Bank iIn
Chicago, Illinois;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343,

1346, and 2.

A TRUE BILL:

FOREPERSON

United States Attorney
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